
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 1, 2017 

AGENDA 
5:00 PM 

Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch 
1901 RUSSELL STREET 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Public Comments  

C. Comments from Library Unions: 

i. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 

ii. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units)  

iii. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) 

D. Comments from Board of Library Trustees  

II. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the Consent 
Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of the February 1, 2017 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the February 1, 2017, Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Library Trustees. 

III. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Trustee interviews and recommendation to City Council for Trustee appointment effective March 
24, 2017  
Recommendation: Trustees will conduct interviews during this meeting of candidates for the upcoming 
vacancy on the Board of Library Trustees in order for the Trustees to make a recommendation to City 
Council. Packets of candidate applications will be available for review by the public at the meeting. 
Following discussion of candidates interviewed, vote by the Board on recommendation to City Council, 
and direct staff to send name of recommended candidate to City Council for appointment. 

B. Signage for Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch 
Recommendation: That BOLT rescind its action from February 10, 2016, and determine whether to 
reinstate the Signage Subcommittee. 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. FY17 – Half-year Budget Report – Dennis Dang, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

B. Monthly Library Director’s Report – Director Heidi Dolamore  

C. Library Events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted 
at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, April 5, 2017 at the Tarea Hall Pittman 
South Branch, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
AGENDA  March 1, 2017 Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Communication Access Information 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please call at 981-
6195 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 

I hereby certify that this amended agenda for the special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in the 
display cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street as well as on the 
Berkeley Public Library’s website on February 24, 2017. 
  
 //s//   ____________________________________________________________  
 Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s records. Please 
note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail 
address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to 
the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, 
please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or 
committee for further information. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection at Berkeley Public Library Administration Office located at 2090 Kittredge Street, 3rd Floor Admin Wing, Berkeley, CA 94704. 

 
1. Black History Month 

 
 
 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

Central Library - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 

West Branch – 1125 University 
North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 

South Branch – 1901 Russell 

 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


 

II Consent Calendar 
Item A 

MINUTES 
Berkeley Public Library - Board off Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, February 1, 2017 5:00 PM 

TAREA HALL PITTMAN SOUTH BRANCH – 1901 RUSSELL STREET 

Board of Library Trustees: 
Chair Julie Holcomb Winston Burton   
Vice Chair Jim Novosel Abigail Franklin 
 Sophie Hahn 

 

 

Page 1 02/01/2017/2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A copy of the agenda packet can be found at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 

1. Call to Order: 5:00 PM 

Present:  Trustees Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb and Novosel. 

Absent:  Trustee Burton. 

Also Present: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services; Jay Dickinson, Circulation Services Manager; 
Rachel MacNeilly, Collection Services Manager; July Cole, Associate Human Resources Analyst; Eve 
Franklin, Administrative Secretary. 

2. Public Comments:  4 speakers. 

3. Comments from Library Unions: 
1. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) – 1 speaker. 
2. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 – 0 speakers 
3. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) – 0 speakers 

4. Comments from Board of Library Trustees  
1. Trustee Novosel – Welcome Council member Ben Bartlett, recommended the book Public 

Library and Other Stories by Ali Smith 
2. Trustee Franklin – Attended the ALA midwinter Meeting in Atlanta. Good to see BPL staff there 

and hear excitement about new director. 
3. Trustee Holcomb – Attended the ALA midwinter Meetings. It was a great crowd of really smart 

people. How libraries can promote social discourse. 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Action: M/S/C Trustee Novosel / Trustee Franklin to approve the consent calendar as presented.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

A. Approve minutes of the January 4, 2017 Special Meeting 
From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve the minutes of the January 4, 2017 Special Meeting of 
the Board of Library Trustees. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-007 to approve minutes of the January 4, 2017 Special Meeting.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


Page 2 02/01/2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

B. Approve minutes of the January 4, 2017 Regular Meeting 
From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve the minutes of the January 4, 2017 Regular Meeting of 
the Board of Library Trustees. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-008 to approve minutes of the January 4, 2017 Special Meeting.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

C. Gifts 
From: Administrative and Finance Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to accept and 
appropriate gift funds in the amount of $4,630. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Finance Manager 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-009.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

D. 2017 Annual Authors Dinner Event  
From: Acting Deputy Director 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the arrangements in preparation for the 15th annual 
Authors Dinner to be held on Saturday, February 11, 2017 at the Central Library. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Sarah Dentan, Acting Deputy Director 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-010.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

E. California State Library FY 2017 Grant Funds for California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) Program 
From: Administrative and Finance Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to accept and 
appropriate in full the FY 2017 CLLS grant fund award of $61,534. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Finance Manager 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-011.  
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. 
Abstentions: None. 

F. Amendment: Contract No. 9200, One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC 
From: Administrative and Finance Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend Contract No. 
9200 with One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC in an incremental amount of $15,000 for the procurement of 
furniture, delivery, and installation services for staff furniture at the Central Library for an amended not-
to-exceed value of $405,000. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Finance Manager 
Action: Adopted resolution # R17-012. Vote:  Ayes: Trustees, Franklin, Hahn, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: 
None.  Absent: Trustee Burton. Abstentions: None. 



Page 3 02/01/2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

III. ACTION CALENDAR 
A. Trustee interviews and recommendation to City Council for trustee appointment effective March 24, 

2017 
President Holcomb adjourned the meeting for five minutes at 5:55pm due to audience interruption. 

President Holcomb call the meeting back to order at 6:00pm 

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Trustees will conduct interviews during this meeting of candidates for the upcoming 
vacancy on the Board of Library Trustees in order for the Trustees to make a recommendation to the City 
Council. Packets of the candidate applications will be available for review by the public at the meeting. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services. 
Action: No action taken. Trustee interviews were deferred to a later date. Board discussion regarding 
questions for candidates. 

B. President and Vice President Elections – Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Board discussion of process. 
 
M/S/C Trustee Novosel / Trustee Franklin to follow process as outlined in the report. 
M/ Trustee Hahn offered an alternate motion to allow for a roll call vote. There being no second, no action 
was taken. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Franklin, Holcomb, and Novosel.  Noes: Trustee Hahn.  Absent: Trustee Burton.  
Abstentions: None. 
 
Trustee Hahn left the room at 6:15pm. 
 
From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to appoint President and Vice-President through the time of 
election in 2017. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Action: M/S/C Trustee Novosel / Trustee Franklin to nominate Julie Holcomb as President.  There being 
only one nomination for the position of President, Julie Holcomb was elected President by acclamation. 
M/S/C Trustee Franklin / Trustee Holcomb to nominate Jim Novosel as Vice President. There being only 
one nomination for the position of Vice President, Jim Novosel was elected Vice President by acclamation. 
Adopted by resolution # R17-013.  
 
Trustee Hahn returned to the room at 6:17pm. 

IV. INFORMATION CALENDAR 

A. Monthly Library Director’s Report 
Elliot Warren will start on February 14 as Deputy Director. Thanks to Sarah Dentan. 
 
From: Director of Library Services 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 

B. Library Events 
From: Director of Library Services 
Contact: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 



Page 4 02/01/2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 
• Tarea Hall Pittman Signage Update 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 6:20 PM.  

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of February 
1, 2017 as approved by the Board of Library Trustees 

//s// _______________________________  

Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services, acting as secretary to BOLT 

 



 

 

III Action Calendar 
Item A 

 ACTION CALENDAR 
 March 1, 2017 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Trustee interviews and recommendation to City Council on appointment of Trustee to serve a 
four-year term commencing March 24, 2017, to fill vacancy left by the ending of Winston 
Burton’s second term. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Interview applicants, discuss candidates, and adopt a resolution naming the recommended candidate to the 
City Council for appointment. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
There is no fiscal impact from this report. 

BACKGROUND 
The Board of Library Trustees consists of five members appointed by the City Council upon recommendation 
of the Board of Library Trustees. Board members are appointed for terms of four years, shall not serve more 
than eight consecutive years, serve without compensation, and must be Berkeley residents.   

Trustee Burton’s second four-year term will end on March 23, 2017. To ensure a replacement is selected and 
confirmed by City Council prior to this date, the process to fill this vacancy began in November. Applications were 
accepted from November 1 through January 13. In addition to advertisement on the City and Library websites, 
the vacancy was publicized via the following: Berkeleyside, Berkeley Times, Berkeley Post, Friends of the 
Berkeley Public Library newsletter, Berkeley Public Library Foundation newsletter, and posted flyers.  

The current boards and commission page of the City’s website provides general information on commission 
vacancies and specific information for the Board of Library Trustees, including BOLT Application, 
Supplemental Questionnaire, meeting times, minutes and a link to the Library's website. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
The Library received 10 applications for the upcoming vacancy. In addition to review of the written 
application, BOLT will have the opportunity to interview each candidate for 10 minutes at the February 1 
meeting. To ensure the interviews are conducted in a fair and consistent manner, BOLT should agree upon 
the interview questions prior to conducting interviews. The following questions are proposed: 

1. What interests you most about the Library? 

2. What do you see as the Library’s mission and why is its mission meaningful to you? 

3. What will you contribute to the board? 

4. What is the most critical issue facing libraries in the future? 

The interview questions can be agreed upon informally or via a motion. 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT OR ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Discussion and recommendation to the City Council on appointment of trustee to serve a four-year term commencing 
March 24, 2017, to fill vacancy left by the ending of Winston Burton’s second term. Page 2 
 
Interviews are scheduled as follows and will commence at the stated time or at the conclusion of the prior 
interview, whichever occurs first. 

5:40 p.m.  Chang 
5:50 p.m.  Dale 
6:00 p.m.  Davenport 
6:10 p.m.  Goldstein-Erickson 
6:20 p.m.  Heglin 
6:30 p.m.  Break 
6:40 p.m.  Hunt 
6:50 p.m.  Jones 
7:00 p.m.  Perkins 
7:10 p.m.  Selawsky 
7:20 p.m. Simard 
7:30 p.m. Zamost 

 

Following the interviews, BOLT will engage in a brief informal discussion of the candidates, followed by a 
motion to recommend a candidate, discussion of the motion, and vote on the motion. Once a motion is 
made to recommend a candidate, the motion must be resolved before entertaining a new motion. Thus, if 
the initial recommendation is not affirmed by a majority of Trustees, the process of proposing a motion will 
continue until a majority decision is affirmed. 

BOLT’s recommendation will be referred to City Council. A majority vote of all the members of the City 
Council is required to appoint a member to the board. 

The new Trustee’s appointment will begin on March 24 and the Trustee will attend their first regular 
meeting in April. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services, Administration, 510-981-6195 
 

 

Attachments:  
1: Resolution 
2: Applications / Supplemental Questionnaires 
 



Attachment # 1 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: R17-___ 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY REGARDING THE PREFERRED 
CANDIDATE TO FILL THE UPCOMING VACANCY ON MARCH 24, 2017  ON THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

WHEREAS, Trustee Burton’s second four year term will end on March 23, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, during the November 09, 2016 meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, the Board instructed staff 
to begin solicitation for applications to fill the upcoming vacancy and issue public announcements; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees directed staff to place paid advertisements in local publications and 
use other means to promote the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s Office of the City of Berkeley received ten (10) applications from interested parties; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees interviewed ten of the applicants during the regular meeting on 
March 1, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recommends Council set the conditions for this appointment as a 4-year term with the 
effective dates of March 24, 2017 to March 23, 2021.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley recommends to 
the City Council of the City of Berkeley that the preferred candidate, __________, be appointed to the Board 
of Library Trustees beginning March 24, 2017. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a regular meeting held on March 1, 
2017. 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  _______________________________________________  
 Julie Holcomb, President 
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 
 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org






























































SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE 
FOR THE 

BERKELEY BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

In addition to filling out the “Application for Appointment to Berkeley Boards and Commissions”, 
candidates are requested to provide additional information to assist the Board of Library Trustees in their 
process to recommend names to the City Council. 

Please return this form and the Application for Appointment to Berkeley Boards and Commissions 
to the Office of the City Clerk 

G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Vacancies\Application and information\BOLT Trustee Supplemental Questions 24OCT2016.docx 

1. Describe your interest in serving as a Library Trustee.

2. What qualities do you consider necessary for an effective Trustee, and how do you demonstrate
those qualities?

3. Provide examples of current or previous community service and leadership roles.

4. What do you see as the Library’s role in the community now and in the future?

See attached Supplemental Questionnaire responses.

See attached Supplemental Questionnaire responses.

See attached Supplemental Questionnaire responses.

See attached Supplemental Questionnaire responses.



 
Attached Supplemental Questionnaire for the Berkeley Board of Library Trustees 

 
Libby Hadzima Perkins (Libby) 

, Berkeley CA 94707 
 

 
 

1.  Describe your interest in serving as a Library Trustee. 
 
 I’ve been an avid library user and reader my whole life and am deeply connect to the mission of 
libraries.   I’ve been a Berkeley resident for the past 5 years but most of this time has been spent as a 
graduate student at UC Berkeley.   As a student, I had easily available access to the UC library system 
(which I regularly used) but had limited exposure to the Berkeley Public Library system. Since graduating 
a year and a half ago, I’ve been blown away at how much the Berkeley Public Library has to offer.  I look 
forward to walking up to the North Branch library on Saturday mornings to pick up the books I’ve put on 
hold for my upcoming book club or heading over to the tool lending library to begin my next repair project 
on our house. 
 
 In an era where information is readily available online, I fear that communities will dismiss the 
importance of libraries as essential social institutions.  As a young working professional, I have been 
looking for a way to contribute locally to Berkeley as my family and I settle in Berkeley.  I would like to 
dedicate time to serving as a fiduciary and steward of this important social institution and believe that my 
skill set would make me well-qualified to do so.  There are a lot of ways that I can contribute to Berkeley 
but I believe in the library’s mission, want to support this important institution and want to help shape how 
libraries evolve their services and role in an era of rapidly changing technology.  
 
2.  What qualities do you consider necessary for an effective Trustee, and how do you demonstrate 
those qualities? 
 

I believe the following qualifies are necessary for an effective Trustee: 
 

• An ability to understand the role of policy, to develop policy, to think through the policy-
making process and to define the appropriate level of decision-making authority. As a lawyer 
by training, I understand and appreciate, at a high level, how policy is developed and 
implemented.   I have been involved in policymaking over the course of my career from 
developing environmental policy for my state congressperson to studying renewable energy 
policy in my early career and while in law school.   Currently I work at Cooley LLP, a large 
law firm in San Francisco, where I advise startup companies and entrepreneurs grow their 
businesses.  In particular, I work regularly with corporate boards helping them to implement 
corporate governance practices, which involves determining whether decisions should be made 
at the board or officer level). This understanding and experience in evaluating where decisions 
should be made in an organization is key in developing effective policies. As a board member 
at Girls, Inc. of the Island City, I developed policies for the board around corporate giving and 
gift management.  
 

• Strong facility with financial information to oversee budget and planning processes.  I have 
a strong financial background having working in investment roles in renewable energy 
investing and portfolio management. Specifically, I previously worked at Cambridge 
Associates where I consulted with leading nonprofits and institutions in managing their 
endowments for long term planning (my clients’ assets totaled $4.8B but varied largely in size 



from >$1B+ endowments to smaller multi-million dollar portfolios).  I also have a finance 
background through my MBA from the Haas School of Business and currently am regularly 
involved in reviewing financial information for my startup and public company clients.  

 
• Willingness to hear multiple viewpoints and an ability to represent the community.  This is 

hard to summarize on paper but I deeply respect and value the opinion of others.  As a lawyer 
by training, I have been trained in how advocate for the interests of others.  As a corporate 
transactional lawyer, I advocate for my client’s interests but I am in the business of getting 
deals done.  This requires deep listening skills and an ability to alter my stances as I learn 
incorporate new information.  My temperate is certainly more of a mediator than a litigator.  

 
• Energy and enthusiasm to support the mission.  Mentioned above but I am deeply committed 

to the mission of libraries as institutions. As noted below – I’ve studied how U.S. copyright 
law supports the mission of U.S. libraries and through my advocacy work in international 
contexts I’ve grown to deeply appreciate the U.S. library system as a vehicle for knowledge 
dissemination. Finally, as a young working professional in the early stages of a demanding 
career, it is hard to find the time for civic engagement but my demographic needs to be more 
civically engaged to bring new ideas to our social institutions.  I am committed to finding time 
to meet the legal responsibility of being a trustee of this important public institution. 

 
• Practical board experience.  While a graduate student at UC Berkeley, I served on two 

different local East Bay boards through the Hass School of Business’s Board Fellows Program.  
Through this program I served two one-year appointments on local boards (Playworks in 
Oakland and Girls, Inc. of the Island City) where I integrated into the existing board, 
participated in all board meetings, had a board mentor and took on a discrete project for the 
organization.   This experience gave me valuable exposure to board governance, processes and 
politics.   As one of the rare joint JD/MBA alumni from UC Berkeley, I bring a blend of 
business and policy experience.  Finally, my husband is a high school math teacher in 
Richmond, CA and we are committed to the mission of education (and I have learned a lot 
about education vicariously through him).  

 
3. Provide examples of current or previous community service and leadership roles. 
 
The following are several examples of my community and leadership experience: 
 

• Active pro bono corporate practice at Cooley LLP.  This has involved representing low income 
entrepreneurs and giving presentations on business law to low income entrepreneurs through 
the Lawyers Committee for Human Rights Legal Services for Entrepreneurs Program 
(including one recent one at the Berkeley Public Library!).  
 

• Involvement in the social enterprise law community where I work with other lawyers at leading 
law firms to develop corporate structures for social enterprises.  
 

• Former law clinic student at the Berkeley Law Samuelson Law, Technology and Public Policy 
Clinic – the country’s leading clinical program on in technology law and the public interest. 
While a student at the Samuelson Clinic, I represented the American Library Association 
(ALA) and the Association of Research Libraries (ARL) to developed advocacy materials 
highlighting how flexibility of the fair use doctrine under U.S. copyright law aids U.S. libraries 
fulfill their public missions.   I presented my findings at the World Intellectual Property 



Organization (WIPO) conference in Geneva and Global Congress on IP and the Public Interest 
in Brazil.    

 
• Former law clinic student at the East Bay Community Law Foundation’s Clean Slate Program 

where I represented low income East Bay residents in cleaning up their criminal records to 
apply for jobs and housing. 

 
• Former board member – Girls Inc. of the Island City (through the Board Fellows Program). 

 
• Former board member – Playworks (through the Board Fellows Program). 

 
• Co-organizer of the Women in Leadership Conference at UC Berkeley Haas School of 

Business – a conference of 500+ women in their early professional careers focused on 
leadership. 

 
4. What do you see as the Library’s role in the community now and in the future?  
 
 The Library’s role today is critical as a social institution for many members of our community.  
Every time I visit a Berkeley Library I am struck by the variety of services the Library provides Berkeley 
residents.  I see people using the library as remote offices while they look for employment or study for 
upcoming entrance exams to college or graduate schools.  I see people using the Library as career and 
professional services organizations and taking advantage of the range of seminars and professional services 
available.  For our homeless population, the Library is a sanctuary where they can escape the weather and 
access resources to address the challenges of homelessness.  For our Berkeley parents, the Library can be 
a source of new friends, family time together and even babysitting.  For our new homeowners, the Tool 
Lending Library provides the gateway into the adventures of home repair.  To me, beyond simply access 
to content, the Library serves an essential role as a physical space for knowledge gathering, sharing and 
community building.   
 
 There is some skeptical out there (especially in the Bay Area I feel) about how effectively public 
institutions can deliver services. Some have the view that the private sector is better at delivering these 
services.  Why do we need public transportation when we have Uber?  Why do we need libraries when we 
have Amazon?  However, I disagree.  I see a tremendous opportunity to leverage the power of technology 
with the physical assets of libraries to build stronger communities and access to knowledge.  In a world 
where in-person social dialogue is on the decline (just read Robert Putnam’s Bowling Alone!), the branch 
library system has a great infrastructure already in place to leverage technology to serve its mission.   As a 
Trustee, I’d be interested in exploring with the library management how Berkeley could use technologies 
like NextDoor and BiblioCommons to better achieve the Library’s mission.  The Library’s role is no 
different now than it has been in the past or will be in the future as the mission has likely always been the 
same.  It’s how we achieve that mission that will change and I’d like to contribute my experience to ensuring 
that the Library continues to achieve its mission.  
 





















 

 

III Action Calendar 
    Item B 

 ACTION CALENDAR 
 March 1, 2017 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Heidi W. Dolamore, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Signage for Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch  

INTRODUCTION 
Recommendation: That the Board of Library Trustees rescind its action from February 10, 2016, and determine 
whether to reinstate the Signage Subcommittee.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Potential fiscal impact up to approximately $22,000.  

 

BACKGROUND 
Renaming 

In February 2015, South Berkeley residents petitioned BOLT to request renaming of South Branch in honor of Tarea 
Hall Pittman, a Berkeley resident from 1923 to 1991 who was a civil rightps activist, community organizer, and radio 
celebrity. In May 2015, BOLT approved a recommendation that City Council consider renaming South Branch for Ms. 
Pittman. The following month, in June 2015, City Council approved renaming South Branch in honor of Ms. Pittman. 
In November 2015, BOLT adopted the name “Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch.” Following the renaming, the Library 
updated its website and marketing materials to reflect the new name, and a temporary sign was placed near the 
Russell St. entrance. In October 2016, the existing “South Branch” sign on Russell St. was updated to reflect the new 
name; the lettering now reads “Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch.” Interior signage with the wording “Tarea Hall 
Pittman” was installed in February 2017 near the south entrance to the Branch, as part of a forthcoming interactive 
memorial in honor of Ms. Pittman’s legacy. 

Signage Subcommittee 

Over a period of four months, the BOLT Signage Subcommittee, consisting of Trustees Jim Novosel and Winston 
Burton, met with community members to formulate recommendations to BOLT on new signage and the wording of 
the new name for the Branch. The subcommittee acknowledged in its February 10, 2016 report that permanent 
signage “will take some time” and that the “library is in an area zoned for residential use and there are significant 
restrictions on signage.” 

When the subcommittee last met on February 4, 2016, they proposed that a “temporary memorial feature 
would be affixed to the Library, preferably on the Russell side of the building, as soon as feasible,” that a “final 
design will be brought to BOLT for approval,” and that “the Subcommittee will continue to report its work to 
BOLT.”  

Although the subcommittee voiced a preference for signage on the Russell St. side, the designs provided to 
BOLT for review featured a proposal for the MLK Jr. Way side. On February 10, 2016, BOLT approved a memorial 
feature for the MLK Jr. Way side of the building, as shown in the attached design drawings. The Ad- Hoc Signage 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR 
Signage for Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch Page 2 
 
Subcommittee was dissolved as the task had been completed. Library staff continued to meet with the members of 
the public to receive input about interior memorial features. 

Sign Ordinance  

In an effort to implement the resolution approved by BOLT at the February 2016 meeting, Library staff met with City 
of Berkeley Planning staff and reviewed the Sign Ordinance in consultation with the City Attorney’s Office. The parcel 
where the Branch is located is zoned as R-2A, a residential district. The design approved by BOLT is not compliant with 
Sign Ordinance provisions regulating signage in R-2A districts. 

Berkeley Municipal Code section 20.08.220 defines a “sign” as follows: 

Any words, lettering, parts of letters, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences, emblems, devices, 
designs, trade names or marks or combinations thereof, by which anything is made known, such as 
the designation of an individual, a firm, an association, a profession, a business, a commodity, 
product, or idea including all parts, portions, units and materials composing the same, together with 
the frame, background, surface, support or enclosure therefor. (Ord. 7120-NS § 5 (part), 2009) 

The Sign Ordinance governs the type, size, and placement of signs in the City, based in part on the zoning district in 
which a sign is located. For instance, sign regulations for residential districts are stricter than sign regulations for 
commercial districts. As relevant to the Library, BMC Sections 20.20.020 and 20.20.030 permit the following signage: 

For parcels with legally established uses other than single- and multiple-family dwellings, one 
on-premises wall sign and/or one on-premises monument sign with a total sign area of five percent 
of the building face of the premises or twenty (20) square feet, whichever is less, no portion of which 
is higher than ten (10) feet above existing grade; 

One bulletin board as defined in Section 20.16.060. 

No moving sign, wind sign, projecting sign or roof sign shall be permitted. 

For clarification, BMC Section 20.08.110 defines a monument sign as follows: 

A ground sign not exceeding six feet in total height that is supported by a solid base on the ground rather than 
by a pole or poles. 

The BOLT-approved design for the memorial is comprised of lettering designating the name of the Library and thus 
meets the definition of “sign” as established by the City’s Sign Ordinance. The lowest portion of the proposed design 
is 13 feet above existing grade and the full height of the sign extends to 15 feet 9.5 inches above grade, the design is 
approximately 40.7 square feet in size, and the sign is proposed as an addition to the existing sign on Russell St. With 
the addition of a new sign on MLK Jr. Way, the sign height above grade, total sign area, and total number of signs 
would exceed allowed signage for R-2A districts. 

This report has been prepared in consultation with the Planning Department and City Attorney’s Office. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
In order to comply with the Sign Ordinance, BOLT needs to modify its action from February 10, 2016. 

The following options are available to BOLT for consideration. 

1) Rescind the BOLT resolution from February 10, 2016 and reinstate the Signage Subcommittee to 
develop a signage proposal that is compliant with the Sign Ordinance. This may necessitate 
alteration to or removal of existing Russell Street signage.  

2) Rescind the BOLT resolution from February 10, 2016 and retain current signage on Russell St. that 
incorporates the new Branch name. This is consistent with the Signage Subcommittee preference 
for a sign on Russell St. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR 
Signage for Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch Page 3 
 

3) Direct Library staff to pursue changes to the Sign Ordinance that would allow the Library to proceed 
with the MLK Jr. Way design as proposed. 

4) Direct Library staff to pursue zoning changes for the Library parcel that would allow the Library to 
proceed with the MLK Jr. Way design as proposed. 

 

CONTACT PERSON 
Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services, Administration, 510-981-6195 

Attachments:  
1: Design plans for new sign on MLK Jr. Way 
2: Photograph of Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch sign on Russell Street 
3: Screenshot of Library Website  
 













Attachment 2 





Attachment 3 
 

 





 

 

  IV Information Reports 
 Item A 

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 March 1, 2017 

 
To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

Subject: FY17 – Half-year Budget Report  

INTRODUCTION  

Library fiscal year 2017 half-year results by Fund are as follows: 

 Revenue Expenditures (xcl Encmb) 
Fund Actual 6-mos YoY Actual 6-mos YoY 

Library Tax (301) $9,528,476 5.5% $7,988,167 6.4% 

Transaction Based Reimb (302) $11,219 0.7% $22,661 12.5% 

Grants (304) $30,000 -49.3% $21,424 -0.2% 

Public Library (305)     

Gifts (306) $55,859 6.8% $28,372 -25.5% 

BPL Foundation (307) $27,100 4.2% $21,768 -25.9% 

Measure FF (308) $2,132 77.1% $4,778 - 

 

FISCAL IMPACTS 

Not applicable. 

 

BACKGROUND 

FY 2017 is the second year of the two-year biennial budget cycle encompassing fiscal years 2016 and 2017.  
The two year biennial budget was adopted by the Board of Library Trustees on June 3, 2015 by Resolution 
No.: R15-109.  On June 8, 2016, by approval of Resolution No.: 16-021, the board updated the fiscal year 2017 
budget to reflect current conditions. On September 7, 2016, by approval of Resolution No.: 16-031, the board 
accepted into the budget carried over prior-year encumbered values and other budget adjustments as part of 
the first amendment to the FY 2017 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAO). On February 1, 2017, by approval 
of Resolution No.: 17-011, the board accepted into the budget a second FY 2017 AAO budget adjustment for 
a higher than anticipated California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) award from the California State Library. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

LIBRARY TAX FUND 

The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax, fines and fees, and 
miscellaneous revenue. At the end of the second quarter, revenues stood at $9,528,476 representing an 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORTS 
FY17 – Half-year Budget Report Page 2 
 
increase of 5.5% YoY, of which $9,053,039 in gross receipts were received in December from Alameda County 
for library tax collections.  Overall, the net year-over favorable change in revenue, amounting to $497,402 was 
fully attributable to $501,734 in higher library tax receipts; revenues from fines and fees at $98,505 were 
$5,252 lower than last fiscal year. 

Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances at $7,988,167 were 6.4% above the prior year period 
yielding an unfavorable variance of $483,482. Payroll costs were up by $288,505 over the prior year period 
primarily due to COLAs – career staff salaries recorded increases of $178,512 and CalPERS rose $100,623. 
Major non-labor YoY cost increases totaled $194,977, attributable to purchase of an additional server 
necessary for the upgrade to the Innovative Interfaces “Sierra” integrated library system, and workstation 
replacements in the Technical Services and Information Technology divisions. 

 

GIFTS FUND 

The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, 
the generosity of many individuals and organizations, and trusts. During the second quarter the Fund received 
a first installment payment of $54,320 of the fiscal year’s $108,589 commitment from the Friends of the 
Library. Donations and interest on the Fund’s balance at $1,539 make up the remainder of revenues received 
to date.   

Actual expenditures (net of encumbrances) at $28,372 were lower by 25.5% from the prior year impacted by 
a slight budgeting delay at the beginning of the fiscal year, as well as programming and field supply costs 
trending lower than the fiscal year’s first quarter and the prior fiscal year period. 

ALL OTHER FUNDS 

All Other Funds is typically composed of funding primarily from California State Library administered programs 
such as the Direct Book Loan Transaction Based Reimbursements (TBR) program (defunct), the Public Library 
Fund (defunct), the California Library Literacy Services program, and the Library Services and Technology Act; 
as well as the BPL Foundation Fund (307) which is funded by support originating or sourced through the 
Berkeley Public Library Foundation.   

The primary revenue source into the TBR Fund (302) remains usage from public-use photocopying, which at 
$10,457 was only $27 lower than last fiscal year’s receipts. Photo-copier revenues are included as part of this 
Fund’s grouping to match with the associated expenditures which are in part supported by prior years’ non-
restricted State Library TBR receipts. Link+ fines yielded another $684 to the Fund. 

By period-end the Grants Fund (304) receipts included the first installment of $18,000 for the California Library 
Literacy Services 2016/2017 fiscal year award of an announced $61,534 in support of the BerkeleyREADS adult 
literacy program, and a $12,000 Technology Opportunity Grant from the Pacific Library Partnership (PLP), a 
not-for-profit consortium of four library systems, for the Library’s winning proposal of Learning by Doing – 
Easy PC Building Workshops.  

In November 2016, the Foundation Fund (307) accepted $17,400 in funding support from the Stephen M. 
Silberstein Foundation and the Berkeley Library Foundation for the Cornerstones of Science program. The bulk 
of Fund spending was from the Nello & Mary Jo Pace Trust in support of North Branch programs and facility 
utility costs. 

MEASURE FF FUND 

The Measure FF Fund was established to serve as the repository for proceeds from the November 4, 2008 
voter approved issuance of $26M in general obligation bonds, “to renovate, expand and make seismic and 
access improvements at four neighborhood branch libraries …” Expenses for the design, engineering, and 
construction needs for each of the four branches have been charged to this Fund. All major activities of the 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORTS 
FY17 – Half-year Budget Report Page 3 
 
branch program are complete. During the first quarter there was a single expense to the Fund of $4,778 to 
cover final EBMUD costs for waste water line relocation during the West Branch construction; first half 
revenue received is $1,204 of interest earned. 

 

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 

At the end of the second quarter, actual expenses excluding encumbrances in the operating Funds (all Funds 
excluding the Measure FF Fund) was 39.4% to the revised budget – versus the period benchmark of 50.0%.  
The bulk of savings are due to deferral of the Central Library space planning project as well as position 
vacancies.  

A 3Q financial report to be presented to the board is projected for the month of May. 

 

CONTACT PERSON 

Dennis Dang, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager, 510-981-6118 

 
Attachments: 
1: 2Q-FYTD 2017 Revenues by Fund 
2: 2Q-FYTD 2017 Expenditures by Fund 
3: 2 Q-FYTD 2017 Fund 306 – Friends of the BPL 





Attachment 1 
 

2Q-FYTD 2017 REVENUES BY FUND 

 

 

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY data as of:
REVENUE DEC FY17 23-Jan-17

Berkeley Public Library
Lib Dscr DL/ILL Grants Gift FF&E Mse FF Rfse  Coll Revenue

Ele/Obj Account Description 301 302 304 306 307 308 820 FY17
01-01 Refund on Bills 2,000 2,000
05-01 Over and Shorts
10-01 Collection by City
13-15 Library Tax 17,893,335 17,893,335
20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act 30,000 30,000
20-11 Library Fines 223,000 223,000
20-12 Link + Fines
20-15 Lost Book Fines 30,000 30,000
20-21 Tool Lending Fines 20,000 20,000
23-12 BPL Foundation 211,000 211,000
23-13 Friends of BPL 90,000 90,000
30-01 Interest-Investment Pool
65-01 Meeting Room Fees 2,000 2,000
80-99 1-Time Grant /w Proj Code  
99-01 Carryover/AAO
99-03 Donations
99-99 Miscellaneous Revenue 10,000 20,000 30,000

Adopted Berkeley Public Library 18,180,335 20,000 30,000 90,000 211,000 18,531,335

01-01 Refund on Bills 2,000 2,000
05-01 Over and Shorts
10-01 Collection by City 10,766 10,766
13-15 Library Tax 17,893,335 17,893,335
20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act 30,000 30,000
20-11 Library Fines 223,000 223,000
20-12 Link + Fines
20-15 Lost Book Fines 30,000 30,000
20-21 Tool Lending Fines 20,000 20,000
23-12 BPL Foundation 211,000 211,000
23-13 Friends of BPL 90,000 90,000
30-01 Interest-Investment Pool
65-01 Meeting Room Fees 2,000 2,000
80-99 1-Time Grant /w Proj Code
99-01 Carryover/AAO
99-03 Donations
99-99 Miscellaneous Revenue 10,000 20,000 30,000

Adjusted Berkeley Public Library 18,180,335 20,000 30,000 90,000 211,000 10,766 18,542,101

01-01 Refund on Bills
05-01 Over and Shorts (93) (93)
10-01 Collection by City 6,103 6,103
13-15 Library Tax 9,424,360 9,424,360
20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act 18,000 18,000
20-11 Library Fines 84,682 84,682
20-12 Link + Fines 71 789 860
20-15 Lost Book Fines 9,973 9,973
20-21 Tool Lending Fines 3,872 3,872
23-12 BPL Foundation 17,400 17,400
23-13 Friends of BPL 54,320 54,320
30-01 Interest-Investment Pool 536 2,132 2,668
65-01 Meeting Room Fees
80-99 1-Time Grant /w Proj Code 12,000 12,000
99-01 Carryover/AAO 5,787,418 124,720 33,008 331,174 1,027,536 1,332,657 8,692,796
99-03 Donations 1,003 9,700 10,703
99-99 Miscellaneous Revenue 5,611 10,430 16,041

Actl+Upstd Berkeley Public Library 15,315,894 135,939 63,008 387,033 1,054,636 1,334,789 6,103 18,353,685





Attachment 2 
 

2Q-FYTD 2017 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY : EXPENDITURES DEC FY17 6 50.0%
Berkeley Public Library + CoB Actuals+Encumbrances YTD DEC
Elmnt- Bdgt ORG Bdgt RSV Lib Dscr DL / ILL Grants Gift Fndtn Mse FF Actual % RSV
Object Description FY17 FY17 301 302 304 306 307 308 FY17 Spent
11-01 Monthly Rated Employees 7,825,876 7,825,876 3,474,087 3,474,087 44.4%
11-02 Wage Continuation Payment 239 239
11-03 Hourly and Daily Rated Empl 246,947 246,947 99,121 19,862 118,983 48.2%
11-04 Monthly Rated - Part Benefitted 106,220 106,220 17,313 17,313 16.3%
11-58 OT Retro Gross Adjust. 5 5
11-59 Reg Retro Gross Adjust. 576 576
11-60 Excess Hours Pay 129,675 129,675
13-01 O/T-Monthly Rated Employee 6,771 6,771 350 350 5.2%
13-05 Holiday Pay 5,081 5,081

8,190,895 8,190,895 3,721,366 19,862 3,741,228 45.7%
20-11 Medical Insurance 1,330,023 1,330,023 528,851 528,851 39.8%
20-12 Dental Insurance 185,199 185,199 68,753 68,753 37.1%
20-13 Life Insurance 7,032 7,032 2,913 2,913 41.4%
20-21 Cash-in-Lieu 124,172 124,172 58,821 58,821 47.4%
20-31 Pers/Misc Other 2,769,860 2,769,860 1,256,367 1,256,367 45.4%
20-34 PARS (3.75%) 13,245 13,245 4,256 745 5,001 37.8%
20-36 SRIP 287,969 287,969 55,444 55,444 19.3%
20-40 Medicare Tax 105,834 105,834 52,526 277 52,803 49.9%
20-63 Retirement Med: Misc. Emp Medical Trusts 173,002 173,002 79,576 79,576 46.0%
20-71 Workers Comp: Workers Comp Charges 191,244 191,244 91,096 403 91,499 47.8%
20-82 Allowances: Shoes Allowance 1,212 1,212 1,212 1,212 100.0%
20-87 Terminal Payouts-Misc.Emp 146,992 146,992 67,719 67,719 46.1%
20-90 Other Employee Benefits 217,237 217,237 128,062 128,062 59.0%
20-91 Commuter Check 21,390 21,390 10,516 10,516 49.2%
27-20 Fringe Benefits (Budget) 12,290 12,290

5,586,701 5,586,701 2,406,112 1,425 2,407,537 43.1%
20-99 Salary Savings (256,243) (256,243)

13,521,353 13,521,353 6,127,478 21,287 6,148,765 45.5%

Prsnl Svcs-Salaries and Wages

Prsnl Svcs-Fringe Benefits

Personal Services-Employee



Attachment 2 
 

2Q-FYTD 2017 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY : EXPENDITURES DEC FY17 6 50.0%
Berkeley Public Library + CoB Actuals+Encumbrances YTD DEC
Elmnt- Bdgt ORG Bdgt RSV Lib Dscr DL / ILL Grants Gift Fndtn Mse FF Actual % RSV
Object Description FY17 FY17 301 302 304 306 307 308 FY17 Spent
30-12 Professional: Stipends 4,800 3,511 1,200 4,711 98.1%
30-35 Professional: Engnrng & Architecural Svcs 129,174 129,174 129,174 100.0%
30-37 Professional: Medical 59 59 59 100.0%
30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs 560,750 764,490 391,768 16,991 7,105 415,864 54.4%
30-39 Hazardous Materials Handling 2,000 1,500
30-42 Maint Svcs: Office Equip Maint Svcs 6,500 6,500 1,000 1,000 15.4%
30-43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs 174,000 289,571 276,098 276,098 95.3%
30-44 Maint Svcs: Field Equip Maint 86,250 20,863 4,040 4,040 19.4%
30-46 Maint Svcs: Computer Maintenance 5,000 5,056 56 56 1.1%
30-47 Maint Svcs: Software Maintenance 350,000 322,351 208,643 208,643 64.7%
30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 4,500 4,500 2,078 2,078 46.2%

1,189,000 1,548,864 1,016,427 16,991 8,305 1,041,723 67.3%
35-20 County/State/Fed Pymts. 5,000 5,000 3,200 3,200 64.0%

5,000 5,000 3,200 3,200 64.0%
40-10 Professional Dues and Fee 47,250 47,253 39,215 39,215 83.0%
40-31 Communications: Telephones 87,200 168,016 159,716 159,716 95.1%
40-33 Communications: Cellular 14,550 14,550 3,380 3,380 23.2%
40-41 Utilities: Water 32,500 34,790 22,500 4,500 27,000 77.6%
40-42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity 300,000 297,710 191,708 15,000 206,708 69.4%
40-43 Utilities: Refuse 34,252 34,252 9,628 9,628 28.1%
40-50 Printing and Binding 17,850 17,600 4,495 2,000 6,495 36.9%
40-61 Travel: Commerical Travel 2,000 5,525 575 404 390 1,369 24.8%
40-62 Travel: Meals & Lodging 7,000 11,768 4,166 4,166 35.4%
40-63 Travel: Registration/Admin Fees 25,000 33,208 15,103 390 15,493 46.7%
40-64 Travel: Transportation 2,000 2,270 505 505 22.2%
40-70 Advertising 20,000 20,200 4,187 4,187 20.7%
40-80 Books and Publications 16,000 16,050 16,050 16,050 100.0%
40-90 Other 175,000 76,904

780,602 780,096 471,228 2,794 19,890 493,912 63.3%
50-10 Rental of Land/Buildings 1,500 1,500
50-20 Rental of Equip/Vehicles 46,500 48,938 28,538 28,538 58.3%
50-30 Rental of Office Equipment & Furniture 10,000 11,200 6,200 6,200 55.4%
50-40 Rental of Software & Licenses 75 75

58,075 61,713 6,200 28,538 34,738 56.3%

Other Purchased Services

Purchased Prof & Tech Svcs

Grants & Gvrnmntl Payments

Rentals / Leases



Attachment 2 
 

2Q-FYTD 2017 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY : EXPENDITURES DEC FY17 6 50.0%
Berkeley Public Library + CoB Actuals+Encumbrances YTD DEC
Elmnt- Bdgt ORG Bdgt RSV Lib Dscr DL / ILL Grants Gift Fndtn Mse FF Actual % RSV
Object Description FY17 FY17 301 302 304 306 307 308 FY17 Spent
51-10 Postage 47,000 37,689 15,295 289 15,584 41.3%
51-20 Messenger/Deliver 13,000 13,000 12,000 12,000 92.3%

60,000 50,689 15,295 12,000 289 27,584 54.4%
55-11 Office Supplies 39,260 36,312 21,898 21,898 60.3%
55-20 Field Supplies 169,721 231,307 144,875 140 12,939 4,047 162,001 70.0%
55-34 Equip & Veh Supp: Spare Replacement Parts 6,000 6,000 1,387 1,387 23.1%
55-50 Food 1,531 16,382 532 137 6,148 1,502 8,319 50.8%
55-60 Library Materials 1,327,000 1,327,964 1,192,165 5 1,192,170 89.8%

1,543,512 1,617,965 1,360,857 277 19,087 5,554 1,385,775 85.6%
60-20 Outside Janitorial Svcs 205,000 205,000 205,001 205,001 100.0%

205,000 205,000 205,001 205,001 100.0%
65-70 Building - Existing Construction 2,525,000 2,465,000
65-75 Building - New Construction 4,778 4,778 4,778 100.0%

2,525,000 2,469,778 4,778 4,778 0.2%
70-41 Machinery and Equipment 9,000 15,279 6,348 1,426 7,774 50.9%
70-43 Furniture and Fixtures 75,000 164,629 81,936 81,936 49.8%
70-44 Computers & Printers 40,000 155,500 93,300 93,300 60.0%
70-47 Computer Softwares & Lic 25,000 25,000 15,750 15,750 63.0%

149,000 360,408 197,334 1,426 198,760 55.1%
71-10 Small Equipment 26,000 18,127 310 310 1.7%
71-43 Mach & Equip: Furniture And Fixtures 480 476 476 99.2%
71-44 Mach & Equip: Computers And Printers 50,000 50,308 15,095 15,095 30.0%
71-47 Mach & Equip: Software & Licenses 20,000 20,000 3,770 3,770 18.9%

96,000 88,915 19,651 19,651 22.1%
75-35 Mail Services 1,764 1,764 882 882 50.0%
75-50 City Vehicles/Fuel & Main 7,800 7,800 5,017 5,017 64.3%
75-60 City Parking Permits 500 500

10,064 10,064 5,899 5,899 58.6%
99-01 Appropriations Ord #1 (109,850)
99-02 Appropriations Ord #2 (12,000)
99-11 Appropriations Ord #1 Offset Acct 109,850

(12,000)
6,621,253 7,186,492 3,301,092 40,538 277 40,587 33,749 4,778 3,421,021 47.6%

20,142,606 20,707,845 9,428,570 40,538 21,564 40,587 33,749 4,778 9,569,786 46.2%

Property Under Cap Limit

Property

Other Expenses
Berkeley Public Library + CoB

Balance Sheet Accounts

Internal Services

Mail Services

Supplies

Purchased Property Services

Infrastructure





     Attachment 3 
 

2Q-FYTD 2017 FUND 306 – FRIENDS OF THE BPL 
  

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY data dated: 19-Jan-17

FY17 GIFT SPENDING ACTUALS - FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY
G:\FINANCE\BUDGETS\FY17\Friends\[FY17_Friends Actuals_19JAN17.xlsx]tbl

@19JAN17 FY17 FY17 FY17 %age/ %age/
DpDv Code Project Spent Bdgt Rcvd #2 Rcvd #1 Bdgt Spnt Rcvd Spnt Notes
9101 17LB01 Gift FY17: BPL Annual Art Show (NACTV) inactive

17LB02 Gift FY17: ALA 2017 618.97 7,500.00 3,752.00 8.3% 16.5%
17LB03 Gift FY17: All Staff Food 367.15 800.00 400.00 45.9% 91.8%
17LB07 Gift FY17: Volunteer Services 500.00 250.00
17LB10 Gift FY17: Employee Teamwork 237.35 1,000.00 500.00 23.7% 47.5%
17LB20 Gift FY17: Training=Dvlpmnt+Hlthy Food 1,325.00 663.00

9101 1,223.47 11,125.00 5,565.00 11.0% 22.0%
9202 17LB11 Gift FY17: Childrens 10,322.14 34,675.00 17,345.00 29.8% 59.5%
9203 17LB05 Gift FY17: Art & Music 2,958.20 11,450.00 5,728.00 25.8% 51.6%
9204 17LB12 Gift FY17: Asian Culture (REF) 1,400.00 700.00

17LB13 Gift FY17: Writing Wrkshp (REF) 4,100.00 2,051.00
17LB14 Gift FY17: Adult Program (REF) 2,374.81 4,580.00 2,291.00 51.9% 103.7%
17LB15 Gift FY17: BHR TALK (REF) 200.00 600.00 300.00 33.3% 66.7%
17LB16 Gift FY17: Science Prgm (REF) 780.00 390.00
17LB17 Gift FY17: Poetry Wrkshp (REF) 530.00 265.00

9204 2,574.81 11,990.00 5,997.00 21.5% 42.9%
9205 17LB04 Gift FY17: Literacy 3,000.00 1,501.00
9206 17LB06 Gift FY17: Teen 1,268.90 11,940.00 5,973.00 10.6% 21.2%
9301 17LB09 Gift FY17: Programming Committee 2,497.11 7,219.00 3,611.00 34.6% 69.2%
9303 17LB21 Gift FY17: South Branch 1,022.14 3,900.00 1,951.00 26.2% 52.4%
9304 17LB18 Gift FY17: Café Literario West 2,444.59 3,150.00 1,576.00 77.6% 155.1%

17LB19 Gift FY17: West Branch 930.78 3,290.00 1,646.00 28.3% 56.5%
9304 3,375.37 6,440.00 3,222.00 52.4% 104.8%

9305 17LB08 Gift FY17: Claremont Branch 3,357.59 6,850.00 3,426.00 49.0% 98.0%
9402 17LB22 Gift FY17: Digitization (NACTV) inactive

Total - *** Friends *** 2017 28,599.73 108,589.00 54,319.00 26.3% 52.7%

Admin

Reference

West





 

 

IV Information Reports 
    Item B 

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 March 1, 2017 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Heidi W. Dolamore, Director of Library Services 

Date: February 22, 2016 

Subject: March 2017 monthly report from Director of Library Services 

SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN RECRUITMENT 

• Recruitment underway to fill two vacancies: North Branch, Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch 
• 68 applications received; first round interviews held on February 22, 2017; selection interview 

tentatively scheduled for March 13, 2017 

PROGRAMS, SERVICES, & OPERATIONS 

• Results of employee engagement survey distributed to staff; initial training on understanding results 
provided to supervisors on February 16, 2017 with additional ongoing training planned throughout 
the year; BOLT presentation planned for late spring/summer 

ORGANIZATION CHART 

The Library’s reporting structures have evolved over the past two years due to vacancies and restructuring. 
With all management team vacancies now filled, we have the opportunity to reorganize to improve span of 
control and operational effectiveness. The Library’s updated organization chart is below.  

 
The Library has identified two areas of staffing need that will be addressed in the proposed budget for fiscal 
years 2017-2019: marketing/communications and program support. 

Communications: A recent report from the Pew Research Center finds that “[d]espite the fact that libraries 
are easily available to most, there are large numbers of Americans who say they are not sure about all the 
services libraries offer…About one in five (20%) say they don’t know very much about what is offered, and 
10% say they know ‘nothing at all.’” In addition to serving as the Public Information Officer for the Library, 

Director

Administrative 
Secretary

Deputy 
Director

Library 
Services 
Manager

Library 
Services 
Manager

Circulation IT

Finance Human 
Resources

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
March 2017 monthly report from Director of Library Services Page 2 
 
the newly created position would be responsible for developing and implementing a communications plan 
to raise awareness of Library services throughout the community.  

 
Program Support: BPL currently employs one Senior Librarian to provide systemwide support for children’s 
programming; her duties include coordination of Summer Reading and programs for children across all five 
locations. The Library does not currently have positions dedicated to systemwide support for teen or adult 
programming. Through the addition of two staff positions, the Library seeks to build on the success of the 
model established for children’s programs to enhance outcomes for teen and adult programming and build 
the Library’s connection to new and underserved audiences. In addition to supporting staff in the delivery of 
outstanding programs, this workgroup would provide additional support for grant development, volunteer 
coordination, and staff training. 

 

CONTACT PERSON 
Heidi Dolamore, Director of Library Services, 510-981-6195 


	2017 03 01 BOLT Regular Meeting Agenda v2
	2017 02 01 BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes vdraft
	2017 03 01 Trustee Appointment Report
	All Applicants - address phone email Redacted
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	2017 03 01 THPS update-6
	2017 03 01 THPS Att 1
	2017 03 01 THPS Att 2
	2017 03 01 THPS Att 3
	2017 02 08 Budget Report_v2
	FY 2017 is the second year of the two-year biennial budget cycle encompassing fiscal years 2016 and 2017.  The two year biennial budget was adopted by the Board of Library Trustees on June 3, 2015 by Resolution No.: R15-109.  On June 8, 2016, by appro...
	Library Tax Fund
	The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax, fines and fees, and miscellaneous revenue. At the end of the second quarter, revenues stood at $9,528,476 representing an increase of 5.5% YoY, of which $9,053,039 in gross ...
	Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances at $7,988,167 were 6.4% above the prior year period yielding an unfavorable variance of $483,482. Payroll costs were up by $288,505 over the prior year period primarily due to COLAs – career staff s...
	Gifts Fund
	The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the generosity of many individuals and organizations, and trusts. During the second quarter the Fund received a first installment payment of $54...
	Actual expenditures (net of encumbrances) at $28,372 were lower by 25.5% from the prior year impacted by a slight budgeting delay at the beginning of the fiscal year, as well as programming and field supply costs trending lower than the fiscal year’s ...
	All Other Funds
	All Other Funds is typically composed of funding primarily from California State Library administered programs such as the Direct Book Loan Transaction Based Reimbursements (TBR) program (defunct), the Public Library Fund (defunct), the California Lib...
	The primary revenue source into the TBR Fund (302) remains usage from public-use photocopying, which at $10,457 was only $27 lower than last fiscal year’s receipts. Photo-copier revenues are included as part of this Fund’s grouping to match with the a...
	By period-end the Grants Fund (304) receipts included the first installment of $18,000 for the California Library Literacy Services 2016/2017 fiscal year award of an announced $61,534 in support of the BerkeleyREADS adult literacy program, and a $12,0...
	In November 2016, the Foundation Fund (307) accepted $17,400 in funding support from the Stephen M. Silberstein Foundation and the Berkeley Library Foundation for the Cornerstones of Science program. The bulk of Fund spending was from the Nello & Mary...
	Measure FF Fund
	The Measure FF Fund was established to serve as the repository for proceeds from the November 4, 2008 voter approved issuance of $26M in general obligation bonds, “to renovate, expand and make seismic and access improvements at four neighborhood branc...
	At the end of the second quarter, actual expenses excluding encumbrances in the operating Funds (all Funds excluding the Measure FF Fund) was 39.4% to the revised budget – versus the period benchmark of 50.0%.  The bulk of savings are due to deferral ...

	2017 03 01 BOLT Director's Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



